
Case Title:  

Name: 

Organization: 

Summary: 

Lewis Chimfwembe, Public Private 
Dialogue Lead, USAID Business 
Enabling Project, presenting the 
Gender RFP to Zambian potential 
applicants in Lusaka, Zambia.



1. WHAT: What is the general context in which the case takes place? What organizational or
development challenge(s) or opportunities prompted you to collaborate, learn, and/or
adapt?

2. What two CLA Sub-Components are most clearly reflected in your case?



3. HOW: What steps did you take to apply CLA approaches to address the challenge or

opportunity described above?



4. RESULTS: Choose one of the following questions to answer.

We know you may have answers in mind for both questions; However please choose one to highlight as part of this
case story



5. ENABLING CONDITIONS: How have enabling conditions - resources (time/money/staff),

organizational culture, or business/work processes - influenced your results? How would

you advise others to navigate any challenges you may have faced?

The CLA Case Competition is managed by USAID's CLA Team in the Bureau for Policy, Planning and 

Learning (PPL) and by the Program Cycle Mechanism (PCM), a PPL mechanism implemented by Environmental 

Incentives and Bixal. 
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	Case Title: Adaptive Learning Facilitates Localization in Zambia
	Submitter: Kareen Shawa
	Organization: USAID Business Enabling Project in Zambia
	Summary: The USAID Business Enabling Project (implemented in Zambia) is designed to catalyze inclusive private sector investment and trade in rural Zambia by facilitating evidence-based public-private dialogue, strengthening select public and private sector institutions, and streamlining policies and processes. With a sectoral focus in agriculture, energy, eco-tourism, and trade, the USAID Business Enabling Project champions reforms that enable enterprises in these sectors—especially women-led businesses and those in rural areas—to participate fully in Zambia’s economic development. 

Ingrained in the project’s design is the direct participation and facilitation of local businesses to deliver the Project’s objectives in line with USAID’s localization efforts. Recognizing the significant local expertise available in Zambia, the Project prioritizes awarding subcontracts to Zambian firms with the goal of strengthening their operational capacities to easily take on USAID work in the future. During Project inception, the team recognized through engagements with potential local firms that certain subcontract application requirements inhibited their interest in applying for work under the Project. The team collaborated closely with USAID and local experts to define requirements that upheld procurement principles while opening the door to more local expertise and adapted its application requirements in response to lessons learned. The result is a more flexible process which values local technical expertise and enables increased participation in calls for expertise while maintaining a transparent and compliant procurement process.

	Context: The USAID Business Enabling Project takes a market systems approach to implementation, which requires identifying and incorporating local expertise. Doing so effectively grounds all activities in the local reality within Zambia’s political and socio-economic context to develop and implement sustainable activities. Within the Project, localization is operationalized through awarding local firms subcontracts and building their capacity to do USAID work, including compliance and reporting. By working through local system actors and harnessing local expertise, results are more sustainable, and knowledge and improvements to the business enabling environment remain embedded in the local ecosystem. As a Project dedicated to removing constraints to doing business, this is a double win. 

However, the Project recognized that operationalizing localization requires more than just issuing RFPs that are technically open to local firms. Despite having significant technical expertise in areas relevant to the Project’s objectives, the team found that many local firms struggled to meet the requirements outlined in early RFPs published by the Project. Potential bidders shared concerns about being unable to meet the stringent requirements, and that they would prefer not to apply. Potential bidders found RFP requirements ‘tedious’ with low chance of award for new or inexperienced companies compared to foreign firms which were typically allowed to bid. With several RFPs anticipated in each of the four focus sectors (Agriculture, Tourism, Energy, and Trade), the Project was keen to draw in as many local applicants as possible without compromising compliance and transparency.

	Dropdown2: [Continuous Learning & Improvement]
	CLA Approach: To make the USAID subcontracting process more accessible to local firms, the Project issued draft RFPs inviting potential applicants to review them and ask questions during hybrid (in person and virtual) town hall meetings. There, applicants could obtain more information on the technical and financial/administrative requirements of the RFP and get information on how to resolve bottlenecks to applying. Project technical leads and the procurement specialist led the Town Hall sessions. At each of the three Town Halls held, the number of online attendees was almost double that of physical attendees. 

From the applicants' questions, a theme emerged. Broadly, potential applicants felt that the procurement process requirements were too strict, which they felt disadvantaged local applicants who lacked USAID experience and access to financial reserves to forward fund activities. They had seen many subcontracts go to foreign firms who could meet the requirements more easily. Applicants repeatedly cited two specific requirements intended to ensure financial capacity which were onerous for firms interested in applying: (1) provision of audited financials and/or (2) the provision of a bank secured line of credit. Audited financial statements were expensive, a cost firms were not eager to take up without a guaranteed contract. Local banks were not quick to offer lines of credit on the promise of potential business. It turned out that these requirements, intended to ensure applicants’ financial capacity, were hindering otherwise technically capable firms from applying for technical scopes of work.  

To resolve this, the Project collaborated with USAID and its home office to analyze the limiting effects of the procurement requirements and explore more flexible measures which could increase RFP applications from local firms without compromising compliance. Through this process of learning and collaboration, the team determined that financial viability could be assessed prior to award – rather than as a requirement to submit a proposal. 

The new application requirements simplified paperwork at the time of application, allowing applicants to focus on technical proposals. If the offeror's application was selected as the top technical offeror, the team would use a hands-on process, coupling compliance with capacity building, to verify the potential subcontractor’s financial capacity to manage a subcontract. The Project also prioritized technical excellence and allowing the team to verify financial viability after technical evaluation. This verification process involves an in-depth review of accounting practices, risk assessment, and other elements. 

	Dropdown1: [Adaptive Management]
	Dropdown3: [Please Choose A Question]
	Factors: While adapting RFP requirements to the local context allowed the Project to draw in more local expertise, it also requires significant time, resources, and effort from Project staff. Operationalizing 'localization' requires significant resources. For example, instead of simply receiving and reviewing audited financials, a staff member must visit technically sound bidders to conduct the financial assessments, perhaps multiple times. While very valuable, this work is time-consuming as it is simultaneously assessing and building the capacity of these firms. The Project is also committed to building the capacity of potential future bidders through ongoing trainings, enhanced town halls, and other means – all of which require significant effort from multiple team members.  

The Project remains committed to its localization efforts. Conditionally shortlisted local firms appreciate the time and effort to engage individually. The Project believes that these efforts will pay-off. Successful local partners understand that the Project in vested in their success and acknowledges their expertise as a vital component to USAID and the Project's overall objectives.

A key learning is that USAID projects that embrace localization must engage local actors early, be prepared to adjust budgets and staff time allocation, coordinate early and frequently with USAID, and have the agility to pivot and key points the implementation process. 

	DEVELOPM ENT RESULTS or ORGANIZATIONAL EFFECTIVENESS: A. DEVELOPMENT RESULTS: How has using a CLA approach contributed to your development outcomes? What evidence can you provide? 
[What is your assessment of how CLA contributed to your development results? Describe the contribution and the evidence you have that links CLA to better results.

If it helps, compare your development outcomes before and after using a CLA approach. If you don’t have that information, how do you think your development results would be different if you didn’t use a CLA approach?}

(Approximate word limit: 250-300)

B. ORGANIZATIONAL EFFECTIVENESS: How has collaborating, learning and adapting affected your team and/or organization? If it's too early to tell, what effects do you expect to see in the future?

[What is your assessment of the difference we could expect to see in your organization with and without CLA? If it helps, imagine that a colleague visited your office before you launched your CLA effort, and then returned for another visit last week. What differences would they observe in your organization’s culture, processes, allocation of resources, and/or relationships? Think of this question as a before/after observation of using a CLA approach. Describe any changes you’ve noticed within your team or organization.]

(Approximate word limit: 250-300)




